

2019 VIRGIN AUSTRALIA SUPERCARS CHAMPIONSHIP – RACES 11 AND 12

CAMS PERMIT NUMBER: 819/0405/01

FURTHER SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS FOR SUPERCARS

1.1 VCS CALENDAR AND ENTRY CRITERIA

- 1.1.1 Delete races 11 and 12 from **Schedule A1. VCS Calendar & Entry Criteria** and replace with the following:

Schedule A1. VCS Calendar and Entry Criteria

RACES	DATE	CIRCUIT	LOCATION	QUALIFYING CUT-OFF. BOTH DRIVERS MUST QUALIFY WHERE APPLICABLE	MAXIMUM NUMBER OF COMPETITORS AS DETERMINED BY SUPERCARS	ENTRY CRITERIA	
11 & 12	2 - 4 May	Barbagallo Raceway	Perth, Western Australia	105%	<u>25</u>	24	REC Holders
						<u>1</u>	<u>Wildcard Entry</u>
Note 1: A Wildcard Entry in a VCS Event must have the approval of the Supercars Board and must comply with the provisions of the Rules including Division C.							
Note 2: A DS2 Competitor wishing to Compete as a Wildcard Entry will only be considered at an Event where the DS2 is not scheduled at the same Event.							

1.2 JUDGES OF FACT

- 1.2.1 Update Supplementary Regulation 1.4.14 Judges of Fact (3) Pit Lane Speed, noting the additional Official double underlined.

1.4.14 Judges of Fact (3) Pit Lane Speed Ian Leech, Tiffany Leech,
Jason Routley, Brent Owens,
Telea Plummer.

1.3 BRIEFINGS

- 1.3.1 Delete Supplementary Regulation 5.5.1 in its entirety and replace with the following:
5.5.1 A briefing for all Competitor's Authorised Representatives will be held at ~~1720hrs~~
1550hrs (AWST) on ~~Wednesday 1st May 2019~~ Thursday 2nd May 2019 in the
WASCC Media Centre – North located on the first floor above the race office.

1.4 MINIMUM WEIGHT

- 1.4.1 In accordance with the requirements of **Rule C4.1.1**, all Wildcard Entry Drivers that have not competed in a race of the 2019 Virgin Australia Supercars Championship, will be required for weighing by Supercars Officials at **1815hrs (AWST)** on Thursday 2 May 2019, in the scales garage.
- 1.4.1.1 Full Driver apparel is required, including all underwear, gloves, HANS, boots, race suit, helmet.

1.5 SPECIFIC PRESCRIPTIONS – VCS QUALIFYING

1.5.1 Delete **Rule D6.2.2.1** in its entirety and replace with the following:

D6.2.2.1 Qualifying - Part 1 (Q1): During the first ten (10) minutes of the Session only the bottom ~~fourteen (14)~~ fifteen (15) Cars in order of the final classification from the practice Session designated in the Supplementary Regulations will be permitted to Compete. At the end of Q1, the slowest ten (10) Cars will not be permitted to take any further part in the Session. The lap times achieved by the ~~four (4)~~ five (5) remaining Cars will then be deleted.

1.5.2 Delete Rule **D6.2.2.2** in its entirety and replace with the following:

D6.2.2.2 Qualifying - Part 2 (Q2): After a five (5) minute break the Session will resume for Ten (10) minutes and only the top ten (10) Cars in order of the final classification from the practice Session designated in the Supplementary Regulations and the top ~~four (4)~~ five (5) Cars from Q1 will be permitted to Compete. At the end of Q2, the slowest ~~four (4)~~ five (5) Cars will not be permitted to take any further part in the Session. The lap times achieved by the ten (10) remaining Cars will then be deleted.

1.6 PIT STOPS

1.6.1 Delete Supplementary Regulation 5.11.1.1 in its entirety and replace with the following:

5.11.1.1 Each Car must complete ~~the one (1)~~ CPS requirements as per **Schedule A2. Format of VCS Events.**

1.6.2 Delete Supplementary Regulation 5.11.1.2 in its entirety and replace with the following:

5.11.1.2 A Car may only ~~complete~~ perform a its CPS after it commences lap 5 on the Race Track.

1.7 DEMOBILISATION AFTER THE EVENT

1.7.1 Delete Supplementary Regulation 3.8.1 in its entirety and replace with the following:

3.8.1 Unless otherwise advised by the Supercars Paddock Manager or their delegate, no Team transporter will be permitted to ~~move from its allocated position or leave~~ the Barbagallo circuit on Saturday 4th May 2019.

3.8.1.1 Teams who are **not** participating in a ride day at Barbagallo must relocate their loaded transporter to the designated parking area at Turn 5 on top of the hill on Saturday 4th May 2019.

3.8.1.2 Remaining Teams will **not** be permitted to move their transporter from its allocated position on Saturday 4th May 2019.

1.8 SPECIFIC PRESCRIPTIONS - START PROCEDURE

1.8.1 In addition to the Specific Prescriptions detailed in this Start Procedure, each Team must also comply with any relevant instructions detailed in the Promotional Schedule and television runsheet.

1.8.2 For race 12 only, delete **Rule D8.3, D8.3.1** and **D8.3.2** only, noting the updates double underlined:

D8.3 **Specific Prescriptions – ~~30~~ 40 minute Start Procedure**

D8.3.1 ~~Thirty~~ Forty minutes

D8.3.1.1 When ~~30~~ 40 minutes remain before the formation lap, a warning will be sounded.

- D8.3.1.2 A Car must be in its Pit Bay at an angle of 45 degrees with the front of the Car pointing toward Pit Exit.
- D8.3.2 ~~Twenty-Five~~ Thirty-Five minutes
- D8.3.2.1 When ~~25~~ 35 minutes remain before the formation lap, a warning will be sounded.
- D8.3.2.2 Pit Exit will open and when instructed over the RMC by a Supercars Official the Car will leave its Pit Bay for 1 reconnaissance lap at a constant speed of 80km/h +/- 5km/h.
- a) Each Car must exit Pit Lane in Pit Garage reverse championship order. ~~unless a Car is unable to leave its Pit Bay or is waiting until all the other Cars have exited. In this case the Car controller must notify the next Car that they are not moving and that the next Car may proceed.~~
- b) ~~Any such Car will be required to remain in its Pit Bay until the last Car in Pit Garage order has entered the fast lane and passed it.~~
- D8.3.2.3 At the end of the reconnaissance lap and when approaching the grid, each Car must keep its engine running until it has stopped at its allocated grid position.
- D8.3.2.4 Drivers are required to be positioned standing at the nose of their Car until notified over RMC.
- D8.3.2.5 Team members ~~may then~~ are not permitted to approach the Car until notified over RMC.
- D8.3.2.5.1 Team trolleys are required to be positioned directly behind the rear of the Car and perpendicular to the track direction
- D8.3.2.6 If a Car fails to take its allocated grid position at the end of the reconnaissance lap, it may only start the race from either the rear of the grid or from the Pit Exit.
- D8.3.2.7 An audible warning will sound 2 minutes before the closure of the Pit Exit.

1.9 EVENT PROGRAM

1.9.1 Delete the Event Program in Chapter 8 in its entirety and replace with the following, noting the updates double-underlined:

Australian Western Standard Time (AWST). (+ 2hrs for SYD/ MEL)

8.1 WEDNESDAY 1 MAY 2019

Start	Finish	Category	Duration (h:mm)	Session
8:30		Dunlop Super2		Transporter Park up & Unload
9:00		Dunlop Super2		Tyre fitting
12:00		Supercars		Transporter Park up
14:00		Supercars		Unload
14:00	16:00	Dunlop Super2	2:00	Track Walk
14:30		Supercars		Tyre fitting
15:00		Supercars		Organisers Meeting
17:00		Dunlop Super2		Competitor's Authorised Representatives Briefing
17:20	-	Supercars	-	Competitor's Authorised Representatives Briefing

8.2 THURSDAY 2 MAY 2019

Start	Finish	Category	Duration (h:mm)	Session
9:30	11:30	Supercars	2:00	Track Walk
<u>11:55</u>	<u>12:15</u>	Historic Touring Cars	0:20	Practice 1
			0:15	
<u>12:30</u>	<u>13:10</u>	Dunlop Super2	0:40	Practice 1
			0:15	
<u>13:25</u>	<u>13:55</u>	SuperUtes Series	<u>0:30</u>	Practice 1
			<u>0:15</u>	
<u>14:10</u>	<u>14:40</u>	Australian GT	0:30	Practice 1
			0:15	
<u>14:55</u>	<u>15:35</u>	Dunlop Super2	0:40	Practice 2
			0:15	
<u>15:50</u>		<u>Supercars</u>		<u>Competitors Authorised Representatives Briefing</u>
<u>15:50</u>	<u>16:10</u>	Historic Touring Cars	0:20	Qualifying
			<u>0:15</u>	
<u>16:25</u>	<u>16:45</u>	SuperUtes Series	0:20	Practice 2
			<u>0:15</u>	
17:00	17:20	Dunlop Super2	0:20	Meeting Rides
			0:15	
17:35	18:05	Australian GT	0:30	Practice 2
18:05		Dunlop Super2		Competitors and Drivers Briefing
			0:10	
18:15	18:25	Supercars	0:10	TV Track Time
			0:15	
18:40	19:10	Supercars	0:30	Practice 1

8.3 FRIDAY 3 MAY 2019

Start	Finish	Category	Duration (h:mm)	Session
<u>11:40</u>	<u>12:00</u>	Supercars Events	0:20	Safety and Course Car Experiences & Pit Lane Walk
			0:15	
<u>12:15</u>	<u>12:30</u>	Historic Touring Cars	10 laps or 1 lap after <u>12:28</u>	Race 1
			0:15	
<u>12:45</u>	<u>13:15</u>	Supercars	0:30	Practice 2 [^]
			0:15	
<u>13:30</u>	<u>13:50</u>	SuperUtes Series	0:20	Qualifying
<u>13:50</u>		Supercars	0:10	Competitors and Drivers Briefing
			0:15	
<u>14:05</u>	<u>14:20</u>	Australian GT	0:15	Qualifying 1
			0:05	
<u>14:25</u>	<u>14:40</u>	Australian GT	0:15	Qualifying 2
			0:15	
<u>14:55</u>	<u>15:10</u>	Dunlop Super2	0:15	Qualifying - Race 1
			0:15	
<u>15:25</u>	<u>15:35</u>	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 1 - Race 11
			0:05	
<u>15:40</u>	<u>15:50</u>	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 2 - Race 11
			0:05	
<u>15:55</u>	<u>16:05</u>	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 3 - Race 11
			0:15	
<u>16:20</u>	<u>16:35</u>	Historic Touring Cars	10 laps or 1 lap after <u>16:33</u>	Race 2
			0:15	
16:50	17:10	SuperUtes Series	12 laps or 1 lap after 17:08	Race 1
			0:15	
<u>17:25</u>	<u>17:55</u>	Dunlop Super2	26 laps or 1 lap after 17:53	Race 1
			0:20	
18:15		Supercars		30 Minute Signal
18:20		Supercars		Pit Exit Open
	18:30	Supercars		Pit Exit Close
18:45		Supercars	50 laps or 1 lap after 19:38	Race 11 - 120 Kms
		Supercars		Podium
			0:20	
20:00	20:40	Australian GT	1 lap after 20:39	Race 1

[^] REFER TO SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATION 5.8.1

8.4 SATURDAY 4 MAY 2019

Start	Finish	Category	Duration (h:mm)	Session
11:25	11:45	Supercars Events	0:20	Safety and Course Car Experiences & Pit Lane Walk
			0:10	
11:55	12:10	Historic Touring Cars	10 laps or 1 lap after 12:08	Race 3
			0:10	
12:20	12:50	SuperUtes Series	20 laps or 1 lap after 12:48	Race 2
			0:15	
13:05	13:35	Supercars	0:30	Practice 3 [^]
			0:15	
13:50	14:05	Dunlop Super 2	0:15	Qualifying - Race 2
			0:15	
14:20	14:35	Historic Touring Cars	10 laps or 1 lap after 14:33	Race 4
			0:15	
14:50	15:00	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 1 - Race 12
			0:05	
15:05	15:15	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 2 - Race 12
			0:05	
15:20	15:30	Supercars	0:10	Qualifying Part 3 - Race 12
			0:15	
15:45	16:25	Australian GT	1 lap after 16:24	Race 2
			0:15	
16:40	17:00	SuperUtes Series	12 laps or 1 lap after 16:58	Race 3
			0:15	
17:15	17:45	Dunlop Super 2	26 laps or 1 lap after 17:43	Race 2
				Podium
			0:20	
18:05		Supercars		40 Minute Signal
18:10		Supercars		Pit Exit Open
	18:30	Supercars		Pit Exit Close
18:45		Supercars	83 laps or 1 lap after 20:13	Race 12 - 200kms
		Supercars		Podium
			0:20	
20:35	21:15	Australian GT	1 lap after 21:14	Race 3

[^] REFER TO SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATION 5.8.2